YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED TO ATTEND A MEETING OF CHILBOLTON PARISH COUNCIL TO BE HELD ON MONDAY 4 DECEMBER 2023 COMMENCING AT 18:30 at CHILBOLTON VILLAGE HALL A G E N D A P A C K

1. APOLOGIES

- 2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
- 3. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON <u>6 NOVEMBER 2023</u>
- 4. MATTERS ARISING (Not covered within monthly routine reports)
- 5. TO TAKE QUESTIONS AND TO DISCUSS AND DECIDE ON ANY PROPOSALS WITHIN THE MONTHLY ROUTINE REPORTS AS FOLLOWS: -
 - A. <u>Finance Report</u> Mandy Denyer to inc.
 - i. <u>approval of accounts for payment</u>
 - ii. <u>To discuss draft 2024/25 budget</u>
 - B. Flood Advisory Group Cllr Marits
 - C. <u>Highways</u> Cllr Cockram
 - D. Open Spaces Committee (COSC)– Cllr Griffiths to inc.
 - i. <u>COSC meeting minutes</u>
 - ii. Fishing rights update (Cllr Ewer) No report at time of publishing
 - iii. <u>To discuss and decide on COSC proposed Cutting of Stock Green Policy</u>
 - iv. <u>To discuss and</u> decide on Agreement for Common residents parking
 - v. <u>To discuss and decide</u> on enclosing the WMPF to be able to apply for an 'Enclosed Sports Area' under the TVBC Public Spaces Protection Order
 - E. <u>Planning Committee</u> Cllr Larcombe
 - F. Village Hall Cllr Ewer No report at time of publishing
 - G. Community Fundraising update Cllr Hall
 - i. To include update on Solar Farm No update to report
 - H. Strategy Working Group update Cllr Ewer No report at time of publishing
- 6. HCC and DISTRICT COUNCILLOR REPORT Clir Drew
- 7. <u>CORRESPONDENCE</u>
- 8. QUESTIONS FROM PUBLIC (3 mins. per person)
- 9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS For information ONLY
- 10. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA
- 11. Date of next scheduled meeting Monday 8 January 2024; 18:30, Chilbolton Village Hall

Mandy Denyer (Parish Clerk) Published 24/11/23

5A Finance report

S106 FUNDS AS AT NOVEMBER '23 - (TVBC s106 Explanation of categories): -

Available (spreadsheet) -Children's Play Space = £ 1771.90 Informal Recreation = £121.43 Formal Recreation = £ 4531.61 TOTAL available for CPC = £ 6424.94Highways – **Outstanding (to be paid prior to occupation)** (Spreadsheet) -Children's Play Space = £ 1220.10 Informal Recreation = £ 2628.99 Formal Recreation = £ 2865.53 TOTAL outstanding for CPC = <u>£ 6714.62</u>

Received and paid out to HCC from Sept '08 – Sept '14 = £25490.22 (<u>Spreadsheet</u>) Outstanding Highways £7437.00 **NB from TVBC**: The amounts shown on the outstanding list are not guaranteed payments; this is because of a variety of reasons such as the permission not being implemented or the amounts being superseded by a later application or agreement. Unfortunately TVBC don't have the resource to investigate each contribution across the borough but if you as the Parish feel that the amounts shown on the outstanding list should have been paid please do let TVBC know and they can get it investigated.

PAYMENTS NECESSARY SINCE 6 NOVEMBER 2023-

Online payments were made to: -Caledonia Play (WMPF Capital) £17447.63 [approved by ClIrs via email] M Treadwell (Website) £17.50 [approved by DG and GM] Vesper (Common and WD) £2205 [approved by ClIrs via email] A Denyer (Stationery) £85.48 [approved by DG and TE] NB: Printer ink from Viking Direct as the re-filled cartridge didn't last as long as original cartridges JRB Enterprises (Common, WD, WMPF, FPs – dog waste bags) £537.60 [approved by ClIrs at 6/11/23 meeting] E Noble (WD) £136.78 [approved by DG and TE] Business Stream (WD) £87.62 [approved by DG and TE] DD payments – SSE (WMPF Running costs – Pavilion electric) £3.82 NB: credit now used up

DECEMBER 2023 PAYMENTS FOR APPROVAL -

D Griffiths (Machinery Costs, common, WD) \pm 172.47 NB: copy of AGM invoice required

A Denyer (Salary, Exps, Postage, Salary back pay)

CURRENT ACCOUNT RECEIPTS – Receipts since last report – Sheldrake, Walsh and Rabeneck (Common – contribution to track repair) £252.39 each

2023/24 ACCOUNTS -

- 1. Bank Reconciliation as at 23/11/23 attached here
- 2. Current acc Receipts, Batty and WMPF acc's spreadsheet attached here
- 3. 1st Quarters Payments spreadsheet attached here
- 4. 2nd Quarters Payments spreadsheet attached <u>here</u>
- 5. 3rd Quarters Payments spreadsheet attached <u>here</u>

2023/24 BUDGET REVIEW -

Precept accounts Ringfenced accounts Budget Review Summary (Est. 2023/24 closing balances)

2024/25 DRAFT Budget

Precept accounts Ringfenced accounts

<u>Precept accounts budget comparison</u> between 23/24 budget and 24/25 draft budget inc. explanation of increase precept (NB: 23/24 actual is as at 9/11/23)

Proposed Precept

Budget income Exc. Precept = ± 692 Budget Expenditure = ± 25884.81 End of year reserve (one month average expenditure) = ± 2157.07 23/24 est. closing balance = ± 2218.85 as at 23/11/23 Deficit / recommend precept= ± 29568.73

5B Flood Advisory Group Report for November 2023

All ditches seem to be holding their own. Thank fully we now have a period of drier weather which should help.

I will be raking and rodding the ditched and culverts shortly, there are still a few leaves hanging into the trees. This should be done by mid December.

I attended the Stockbridge Parish Council meeting and met with those proposing a Test Valley pan parish group for Sewage related issues. I explained our willingness to participate and I await an invite to the first meeting, as and when it arrives.

M G Marits

5C December 2023 Highways Report

- The closure of Coley Lane for 1 day between Station Road and River View Close, according to the HH Display Boards, was planned for December 24^{th.} However, Open Reach was given a permit to install a new telegraph pole next to the Fenstanton Development for November 24th. I have written to David Drew to progress with Hampshire Highways how errors like this can occur.
- Pot holes in Coley Lane between Drove Road and River View Close, reported to Hampshire Highways. Ref: 21692697. Current status: October 6th worked passed to contractor.

Geoff Cockram

Back to Agenda

Back to Agenda

5Di COSC DRAFT Minutes of the meeting held on 9/11/23

PRESENT: David Griffiths (DG), Moya Grove (MG), Nick Horne (NH), Mandy Denyer (MD), Julian Hudson (JH), Emma Noble (EN), Trish Heaton (TH)

- 1. Apologies: Terry Gilmour (TG)
- 2. Declaration of Interests: None
- 3. Approval of Minutes Thursday 13 September 2023: These were agreed and signed as an accurate record of the meeting.
- 4. Matters Arising:

COSC were very saddened to hear of the death of Abby Purver and would like to recognise the valuable contribution she made to COSC, in particular on behalf of the horse riding community.

DG noted that a Wherwell resident has expressed an interest in the old slide and tunnel following the removal of the slide mound. NH to get in touch to find out how much he is willing to contribute before making a decision.

NH would like an amendment noted to the Chairman's Report (below). It is not TVBC who does the playground inspection, but an outside company.

- 5. Update report from COSC Chairman:
 - 1. There was no meeting of COSC last month as only 3 persons could attend, including myself.
 - 2. Moya Grove will report on issues concerning the Common.
 - 3. Fishing Rights: We have received the latest draft deed. TE and myself will consult a solicitor before responding. At first glance it looks fine.
 - 4. Machine Maintenance: one brush cutter is currently being repaired as drive shaft broke. Emma working it too hard! Cost about £160.
 - 5. West Down: as I think everyone is aware we are short of volunteers. The operator of The Beast has a full time job and is no longer available. Currently, there is no-one else as I have a bad back. There is only Emma Noble to operate a brush cutter. The rest use loppers which is slow going. I have asked Rob West, who currently cuts the area outside the enclosed area, if he will cut as much as he can in the enclosed area as well. He has agreed to do so. The approximate cost is £350. This will leave the less accessible areas for us to clear. Hampshire Conservation Volunteers are coming on 10/02/24. I can't remember how much they charge but it is not much and they do a good job. I have also been in touch with HCC as they have a group of volunteers who may well assist us. With all this I think we have a decent chance of clearing sufficient ground in the enclosed area but at a cost.
 - 6. CWMPF: The new play tower has been installed and looks great. Hopefully inspection by TVBC will be OK. We need to agree an opening ceremony.
 - 7. Footpaths: The Mark Way is in a very bad state and is virtually impassable. I have been pressing HCC to clear it for months. They told me it would be cleared weeks ago but then decided that something else was more important. They now say they will cut it hard back during this winter. We have no option but to accept this but it is not good enough.

I have asked the lengths man to clear the bit of the Mark Way that runs from the Little Drove Path to the entrance to West Down plus the Whiteland's Path this month.

Mandy has written to the residents of Tuxford House asking them to clear the Grindstone Green Path. While passable the side growth needs trimming back.

Three fingers have been added to the three signs indicating the three paths from the village street that lead to the Common.

The marker post opposite the Coronation tree will be replaced as it is too short. I obtained a new post from HCC free of charge. This will indicate both the Test Way and Cow Common. Andy Bond has agreed to erect it in the next few weeks.

Other matters outstanding are: the cutting of Stocks Green; residents parking on the Common; making the CWMPF an "enclosed sports area" and blue badge parking on the Common need to be discussed by COSC at the next meeting.

- 6. To take questions and/or discuss and decide on any proposals within the monthly update reports as follows: -
 - A) Finance Clerk
 - I. Finance transactions since last COSC meeting:

Receipts since last report – Savings account interest £11.12 (£5 for Batty acc and £6.12 for WMPF Capital Acc)

Payments since last report –

EXPENDITURE	to	Common	MD	WMPF Capital	Batty Acc	Community Projects	WMPF - Running Costs	Allotments	Greens	Footpaths & Tree Man	Machinery Costs	Misc	VAT	TOTAL
	Your Parking Signs (Cow													
	Common Parking) additional													
19.9.23	payment for channel fixing	38.70											7.74	46.44
	D Griffiths (AB reimbursments -													
	Common, Village Greens,													
	WMPF adventure tower + salt													
4.9.23	licks and fuel)	3006.83	12.00			324.00			467.10		16.00		8.00	3833.93
	A Bond (Common Signs, WMPF													
25.9.23	gate, WD install post)	329.50	60.50				339.00							729.00
	Grass and Grounds (18 & 29													
3.10.23	august)						270.00						54.00	324.00
	A Denyer reimbursement for no													
6.10.23	horse riding discs	11.11	11.10										4.44	26.65
	ProMow Landscaping (Frog													
	Lane and Joys Lane ditch													
4.10.23	clearing)								198.00	396.00				594.00
	Hampshire Conservation													
16.10.23	Volunteers (Abbots Stream)	48.00												48.00
	The Acorn workshop (2x finger													
	posts ' Cow Common' and 'Test													
	Way' for Coronation Green													
31.10.23	crossing)	175.00											35.00	210.00
	Grass and Grounds (15 + 29 Sept)						270.00						54.00	324.00

NH raised a query about the entry of 4.9.23 above 'WMPF adventure tower'. It was established that this related to the payment for the digger etc for removing the slide mound / drive way / ditches.

II. Discuss and decide on 2024/25 budget for CPC approval (A very draft budget was circulated to COSC members as a starting point for discussions)

Regarding the 24/25 DRAFT PRECEPT ACCOUNTS Budget report:

NH pointed out that no football team has taken our playing field for the season. There may be some training and there may be a team using our pitch if Wherwell's pitch is waterlogged, but for that reason, there may not be a need to spend £700 on grass cutting this year.

MD queried whether allotment prices should be raised. COSC agreed that TG should be approached to see if current prices are in line with other allotments.

NH reported that the branch referred to as 'overhanging the pavilion' on CWMPF is actually over the container. The pavilion one has been removed. COSC considered a more reasonable price was £500 rather than £200 to cover all tree works on the CWMPF.

It was agreed that the proposed fence for the Enclosed Sports Area at the back of CWMPF is still pending. The fencing for this will be put under 'capital'. NH suggested £2000 be budgeted for the work if it does go ahead.

NH considered that reference to CCTV should be removed but MD pointed out that this budgeted £800 also includes all costs towards repairs, given the age of the playground equipment. NH indicated that Spalding will not replace the basketball backboards, the cost of this will need to be included in the budget. Therefore the £800 will not now include the CCTV but will need to cover the costs of the basketball court repairs.

COSC agreed that all expenses on the report down to 'Tree Management' should remain the same.

DG reported that there had been plans for volunteers to do much of the easier tree works, but all trained volunteers are now unable to do this. DG considers that £5000 will not cover the extent of the work now required. COSC agreed that this budgeted cost should be doubled.

DG reported that there were three large ash trees which had died along the right hand side of the path behind the bottle bank. MG believed that if they were on the right hand side, this was Leckford Estate land. MG to check this. DG reported that Steve White, a Utilities Surveyor had been contacted and may be able to do this work if needed.

MD noted that West Down and the Common should be self-funded and no money for their maintenance should be taken from the precept. The tree work will stretch this arrangement and precept money might need to be spent on it. This should be raised with HCC in the hope that they will agree.

George Marits has offered to go on the chain saw course which is why this cost has been included in the budget.

It was stated that 'Pavilion Enhancements' relate to putting protective paint on the rusty roof. RF was planning to do it, but as he is not able, COSC agreed the budgeted cost should be doubled to £400.

It was agreed that the CWMPF annual play area inspection budget should be increased to £100.

Regarding ditch clearance, DG considered that although much work has been done this year, the ditch alongside the track leading to the playing field might need clearing. DG to investigate whether the stream from Frog Lane does 'belong' to Bannuts Farm from a maintenance point of view. COSC agreed that the ditch clearance budget should be increased to £1000.

Regarding the Draft Ring fenced Accounts Budget:

DG raised the issue of the Sustainable Farming Initiative / Delinked payment. No members of COSC were keen to take on this job. NH will contact a member of the public he has in mind who may be able to help.

No income will be raised from CWMPF so £5000 to be removed.

MD said the grass cutting for the Common may increase. MD recommended £1200.

Tree management budget increased to £3000 for the Common.

MG to get an honorarium payment of £100 in this financial year.

DG confirmed that the budget for Vesper on WD should be increased to £1000 as they will be cutting the enclosure as well.

COSC agreed that the budget for dragons teeth on WD should be increased to £100.

WD vegetation strimming / management reduced from £500 to £200.

WD Misc expenses reduced from £150 to £50.

Enclosing of the playing field will be added at an estimated cost of £2000.

- III. To discuss and decide on the registering of interest for the RPA Sustainable Farming Incentive (SFI): As above
- IV. To discuss the RPA change from BPS to Delinked payments: As above
- B) Allotments Prior to the meeting TG had nothing to report.
- C) Common Prior to the meeting MG circulated the following report:

Notices - No news re WRT info notice

Access - Regarding the horse gate: HCC have agreed to pay most of the cost of supplying a gate the same as already installed on the far side. The current gate will be removed and replaced with this gate to satisfy the horse riders. Andy Bond has agreed the proposed changes with them. Unsure how much the gate will cost as Emma is looking into this. She intends to apply for a grant to cover the balance of the cost of the gate and the cost of installation.

Public Spaces Protection order No decision. CPC to follow through.

Educational Access - Evaluation sheets submitted to Clerk

Cows - Likely to be removed mid-November MG to clarify with Adam Coutts

Jasper tells me that since we put down salt licks the cows have done less damage but still some damage is occurring. He wants to speak to Adam Coutts .

Visitors - No issues; weather very changeable and wet

Management - No activity this month DG and MG surveying boundary needs. We need to schedule scrub clearance from boundary as per the management plan **Decide date and personnel.** Autumn cut to be during the week beginning 6th November Rob West of Vespers Conservation. MG to meet him to select areas to be cut.

Autumn Stream Clearance - Very successful effort on the part of Sparsholt College, Hampshire Conservation Volunteers and a family from the village working with Emma Noble

Residents parking on the Common - DG has drafted a letter for Mandy to send the residents of the Common re parking on the Common. A resident asked for time to consult and respond; nothing received at this time.

[Note from Clerk: 3 of the 4 properties have responded to say that they are willing to enter an agreement. One resident commented that properties may need, on occasion, permission for more than 2 vehicles such as when contractors are working on their properties.

- I. Update on Fishing Rights <u>See Chairman report</u> DG confirmed that the paperwork had been taken to a solicitor in Andover and the outcome is awaited.
- II. To discuss and decide on whether to stipulate a number of cattle to be grazed on the Common at any one time: On the advice of MG, COSC has agreed that a maximum of 30 cows can be grazed.
- III. To discuss and decide on Agreement for Common residents parking see <u>Common report</u>. A letter was sent to common residents giving them permission to park 2 cars on Common land. One member asked about tradesmen. DG suggested an addition along the lines of 'Tradesman parking temporarily for the purpose of carrying out work'. MG suggested 'if necessary' at the end, in case the property has additional parking within its own curtilage.
- IV. To discuss and decide on criteria for allowing Common gate code to be released to blue badge holders: This has been previously decided on.
- V. EN raised that Andy Bond had looked the Joy's Lane horse gate and offered some suggestions to remedy the obstruction caused by the security gate. HCC have said they will fund 75%, although it's not quite clear if that means 75% of the whole work, or just the gate cost. EN provided 3 gate options from HCC's preferred supplier. COSC agreed that the a metal gate would be acceptable. EN to submit the grant application to HCC.
- D) Machinery Maintenance see chairman report
- E) Parish Paths see chairman report
- F) Village Greens To discuss and decide on proposal to CPC re Cutting of Stock Green Policy :**COPY** report from JHAMILTON
- G) War Memorial Playing Fields -
 - Discuss and Decide on proposal to CPC re enclosing the WMPF to be able to apply for an 'Enclosed Sports Area' under the TVBC Public Spaces Protection Order: MG to confirm whether Chilbolton is covered by the Order before progressing.
 - II. COSC offered their thanks to the Development Group for the Adventure Tower.
 - III. Regarding payment for the Adventure Tower prior to all 'snagging' items being addressed, COSC agreed that a 75% payment is reasonable. This has been submitted to CPC already. NH suggested that the Development Group should negotiate with Caledonia Play to avoid souring the relationship. The Development Group will reply to Caledonia Play about the bullet points mentioned in their letter, assuming the 75% payment is agreed by CPC.
 - IV. Regarding CPC's suggestion of a 2nd village survey on the future plans for CWMPF, the Development Group would like to first address the issues with the Adventure Tower, then look to complete the Pump Track. Once complete, they will look at the issue of the survey

and will get together to consider the next steps, depending on whether money is available. DG agreed and confirmed that the CPC want to know what is planned after the Pump Track.

- H) West Down see <u>Chairman report</u>
- I) Correspondence:

10/9/23 - Complaint re Common parking (21023_2). Further response and reply (21023_2a)

12/9/23 - HCC explanation re cutting of the Mark Way (21023_4)

19/9/23 - Slow Ways walking network invitation (21023_6)

28/9/23 – Hedgehog Highway Project (21023_16)

12/10/23 - HCC re Letters for Parish and Town Councils regarding overgrown vegetation and ditch clearance (61123_6)

20/10/23 - River Test Pollution (61123_11)

31/10/23 - RPA re Delinked Payments Information Statements are coming soon (61123_18) – to be discussed under Finance 6Avi

- V. Questions from Public:
- VI. Any Other Business For information only:
- VII. Items for the next agenda:
- VIII. Date of the next meeting Scheduled date is Thursday 14 December 2023 at Poplar Dene, Village Street.

There being no further business to discuss the meeting was closed at

Back to Agenda

5Diii Proposed Stocks Green cutting policy

The management plan for mowing on Stocks Green will be as follows: NO mowing in March, April, May, June, July and August, except for it being strimmed around the edge of the green where there is a lower section of the Green parallel to the road and between the road and the bollards.

Mid September onwards: The Green is to be completely mowed, both the low edge and the central section and the cuttings to be removed and taken to the church yard compost area.

If there are any queries, please contact Jenny Hamilton (), David Griffiths or Moya Grove.

Back to Agenda

5E Planning Report

Plot of land with planning permission in Branksome Close going to auction. Being sold by Aster HAA.

Middlebarn Farm Application for outbuildings REFUSED

Fenstanton Application for removal of condition 15 on Plot 1 REFUSED

Orchard Cottage Retrospective planning permission to be submitted when owner knows how the steps will be need to be re- figured for access.

Submission made to Test Valley relating to the Wherwell solar farm.

Lynton Meadow land, OBJECTION, uncertainty as to how the land will be used.

TVF withdrawn for NAPC 23/11. Test Valley are considering Chilbolton's objection that house mix does not comply with HD1

Minutes of the meetings held on 6.11.23 and 20.11.23

Back to Agenda

8. Correspondence

8/11/23 - NALC pay scale announcement for 23/24 (41223 1)

8/11/23 - Letter sent to Caledonia Play re balance of payment for Adventure tower (<u>41223 2</u>), Caledonia reply (<u>41223 2a</u>, <u>2b</u>), Cllrs emails agreeing to pay 75% (<u>41223 2c</u>), letter to Caledonia (<u>41223 2d</u>)

10/11/23 - TVBC - how base rate is calculated (41223_3)

10/11/23 - TVBC Community Asset Fund to Open for Applications (41223 5)

22/11/23 HALC November '23 newsletter (41223_8)

24/11/23 - Utility works on the highway - an explanation from Hampshire Highways (41223_12)

Back to Agenda